and the service of the 607 II 1823 

JOHHNY LEE FRAZIER,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 73,082

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

## PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MICHAEL E. ALLEN PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

MARIA INES SUBER #0539538 ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER POST OFFICE BOX 671 TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302 (904) 488-2458

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

#

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JOHNNY LEE FRAZIER,
Petitioner,
VS -
STATE OF FLORIDA,
Respondent.

CASE NO. 73,082

#### PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

:

:

#### I PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, Johnny Lee Frazier, was the defendant in the trial court and the Appellant in the First District Court of Appeal. He will be referred to in this brief as "Petitioner." Respondent, the State of Florida, was the prosecuting authority in the trial court and the Appellee in the District Court of Appeal, and will be referred to as "the State.'' An Appendix, consisting of a copy of the decision of the First District Court of Appeal, the briefs filed in the lower appellate court and the staff analysis on HB 8-b (DUI bill), is being filed with this Brief.

-1-

## II STATEMENT OF THE CASE

After a jury trial, Petitioner was adjudged guilty of DUI Manslaughter. Petitioner was also found in violation of probation on a 1980 sexual battery conviction. The recommended sentence under the guidelines was 17-22 years; however, the trial court sentenced Petitioner to 15 years in prison for DUI Manslaughter to be followed by 10 years in prison for the sexual battery, the latter sentence being credited with time already served. (R-11; 79; 531-532; 535-556, 112-114; 563-564, 115-126)

On appeal the First District Court of Appeal affirmed Petitioner's conviction and sentences, but certified the following question as one of great public importance:

Whether jury instructions based on the statutory presumptions contained in **§316.1934(2)(c)** constitute unconstitutional mandatory rebuttable presumptions.

Petitioner filed a notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction of this Court to review the decision below on September 20, 1988, alleging that such decision involved a question of law pending before the Court in <u>Poore v. State</u>, 503 So.2d 1282 (Fla. 5th DCA 1987), Supreme Court Case No. 70,397.<sup>1</sup> Jurisdiction was invoked pursuant to <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

<sup>1</sup><u>Poore</u> was decided by the Court on September 22, 1988.

On September 23, 1988, this Court ordered Petitioner to submit his brief on the merits on or before October 18, 1988.<sup>2</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Upon further inquiry with the Clerk's Office, counsel for Petitioner was advised that a brief on jurisdiction would not be required.

## III STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Officer Edward Louis Johnson observed Petitioner on the evening of November 6,1986, at the intersection of Broad and Bay streets, driving very slow at about 5-8 miles per hour (R-64-66), and entering into the section of Bay Street which is a one way going west. Because Petitioner was going the wrong way, Johnson signaled him to stop; the officer did not know if it was somebody lost. (R-67) Petitioner drove one more block and turned into Pearl Street which was a two-way street for about one block; from there the only proper way to drive was to turn right at Forsyth. But at the intersection of Pearl and Forsyth, Petitioner accelerated and proceeded the wrong way forward into Pearl Street. Johnson could see the smoke coming out of the tail pipe, he knew Petitioner was driving pretty fast--about 55 miles per hour. Two blocks later, Petitioner smashed into a BMW car. (R-67-79) Johnson saw no indication that Petitioner attempted to brake or try to avoid hitting the automobile. He saw the BMW spin and slide and end up in the sidewalk and saw Petitioner's car turn around. A passenger was ejected from the BMW but he did not see when this occurred because it happened too fast. Johnson drew his gun, approached Petitioner's car and ordered him out; Petitioner was not harmed, however, he could smell alcohol on him or his car. (R-79-82) Petitioner was arrested and put in the patrol car and subsequently was requested to take a set of four field sobriety tests, the results of which were unsatisfactory.

-4-

Petitioner's eyes were dilated, bloodshot, watery and his speech was slurred. (R-83-100) Petitioner admitted he had been drinking that night. (R-92) Petitioner was transported to the county jail around 5:00 a.m. the following morning and agreed to take an intoxilyzer breath test. (R-100) In Johnson's opinion Petitioner was affected by alcohol to the extent that his normal faculties were impaired. (R-103)

During cross-examination, Johnson stated that although there were traffic lights at the intersection where the accident occurred, the color of the lights could not be viewed by Petitioner; that at the intersection there was a tall building partially blocking the view of traffic; however, he saw car lights right before the accident; and, admitted his perception of alcohol on Petitioner was moderate and that his general body odor evidenced that he had been working. (R-116-132) The officer also testified that when he looked briefly into Petitioner's car, he did not see any evidence of spilled alcohol and stated that while in the back of his patrol, Petitioner never lost consciousness or fell asleep. Johnson moreover stated that he gave Petitioner the field sobriety tests after Detective Massey suggested it but stated that the suggestion was not a command and that he was going to do it anyway. (R-132-134) He admitted that prior to administering the tests, Petitioner complained of a heart condition and had requested twice to be allowed to use the restroom. (R-134-135) Although he explained the results of field sobriety tests are not evaluated on a passing grade or a good/bad end spectrum,

-5-

Petitioner's performance on the balance test fell towards the good end of the range. (R-135-139) On the nose test, the officer related that the closer an individual gets to the nose the better and admitted that on this test, Petitioner touched his upper lip but without closing his eyes (R-138-139, 143); he also admitted that the coin test was a pretty difficult task that even people in the best of circumstances could not per-(R-141-142) Johnson explained that for the alphabet form. test it is assumed the person taking it is well educated and knows the alphabet and stated that although he could understand Petitioner when he recited letters, Petitioner had failed the test because he did not go through the whole alphabet (R-142). He also admitted that as to the coin test it was easier to sit in a car and drive than to perform the test. (R-144-146) He testified that at no time was Petitioner hiccuping, belching or vomiting and stated he had been notified of the death and had been at some time crying. (R-146-148)

During re-direct, Johnson went on to reiterate that as to the field tests there was no good/bad end range of performance. (R-153) But explained that if an individual does not comply with the instructions as to how to perform the tests, he fails them and related that in the nose test Petitioner had not closed his eyes and had taken his time in bringing his hand to his nose; certainly, he, the officer, had done it quicker and without missing his nose. (R-156) And, finally during re-cross, Johnson admitted that for judicial process purposes, and about the balance test, it was worse if Petitioner had

-6-

fallen, had needed support or had wobbled instead of just swayed; and, admitted that he himself had performed the nose test many times and had therefore gotten pretty good at it. (R-163-164) He also stated that although Petitioner had been informed at least twice that a person had been killed, he had not heard any response because he was outside of the car at the time. (R-164-165)

Michael Kenney was the driver of the BMW. He testified that he and Jim Wigle were returning to Jacksonville from Pensacola when the accident occurred. He was traveling down Monroe Street at approximately 25 miles per hour and had the green light when he entered the intersection. All he remembered of the collision was glass flying around, his car ending up by the back of the post office and turning to see if Mr. Wigle was okay but he was not in the car. (R-166-170) He later found him laying on the sidewalk; he was not moving. Kenney testified that he had no time to evade the collision and stated he suffered damage to his nose, a chip above his eye, a cut on the back of his head and a small injury to his foot. (R-170-171) He did not remember how Wigle got out of the automobile. (R-171) Kenney went on to testify during cross-examination that Mr. Wigle was sitting in the front passenger's seat: the front seats were bucket seats with a high back restraint and Wigle never went back to any of the rear seats. Additionally, he testified that at all times, he was wearing his seat belt and that although Wigle was also, he had no idea whether prior to the time of the collision he had

-7-

already disconnected it. He denied telling any of the officers that Mr. Wigle's seat belt was already off but merely having agreed with what they said to that effect. (R-171-182) Moreover, he related that prior to the accident he never saw any blue lights or reflections and had not heard any horns or sirens, and reiterated that he never had any time to take any evasive action. (R-182-185) **As** far as he knew all the safety equipment was in working order, he had not had any complaints from any of his passengers. The damage to his car -- some \$30,000 -- was mainly to the right back rear of the car; there was no damage to the passenger's side of the car. (R-185-195)

Dr. Bonifacio Floro performed an autopsy of Mr. Wigle on November 7, 1987. He related that Wigle exhibited multiple injuries to his head, chest and stomach, had several lacerations to the skull, forehead and right side of the face, and his neck, backbone, arm and ribs were broken and his internal organs lacerated. (R-195-197) **As** to the cause of death, he testified that the broken neck and a laceration to the aorta would have been sufficient to kill him. He did not know how the victim sustained the injuries. (R-198-199)

During cross-examination, Dr. Floro opined that Mr. Wigle died at impact or upon hitting the ground and that some of the injuries and abrasions on his face and body areas were not consistent with road burns; however, he could not tell how he got the injuries, it could have been while being ejected, from hitting a fixed object like a tree or from the ground. (R-199-201) He also testified that most of the time if a

-8-

person is wearing a seat belt at the time of the impact, there will be marks to that effect on the body; however, he never found or saw such marks on Mr. Wigle. (R-201-202) The doctor opined that the fatal injuries could have been the result of or could have been caused when he was falling on the ground or from the car when he was being ejected; however, he could not tell whether the injuries happened inside or outside the car nor could he answer a hundred percent correct whether those fatal injuries would not have occurred had the victim been wearing his seat belt. A lot of that was dependant on the person's momentum and the site of the impact and whether there was any evidence of broken glass, fibers, blood or fluid found inside the person's car. And finally, asked to give an opinion as to whether Mr. Wigle would have been ejected from the car based on the hypothetical question that he was seated on the front passenger's side, and wearing a seat belt, the doctor opined that he might not have been ejected; however, he was not sure whether the outcome would have been any different because that would depend on the amount of impact, the speed. (R-203-210) The doctor explained, however, that it cannot always be determined whether a victim was wearing a seat belt and that the bottom line was that he could not say whether Wigle was wearing one at the time (R-211-212). He also testified the injuries could have occurred with or without wearing a seat belt at the time -- He simply did not know (R-213); but in his opinion the injuries were suffered as a result of Mr. Wigle being ejected from the automobile. (R-214)

-9-

Lawrence Osborne was the Chief of the Paramedics Department at the Jacksonville Sheriff's office. He testified that on November 6th, he drew a blood sample from Petitioner. (R-215-227) When doing so, Osborne got within two feet from Petitioner; he could not swear that he detected an alcoholic beverage odor on him (R-235-247), but explained further that he really did not get directly in front of him and that detecting an alcohol odor was not in his mind. He was concentrating in getting the i.v. (R-247-28)

Detective Hugh Michael Massey arrived at the scene around 12:20 a.m. After discussing the details of the accident and while talking to officer Johnson by his patrol car, he detected an alcoholic beverage odor emanating from where Petitioner was sitting. (R-251-254) A search of Petitioner's automobile revealed two Schlitz beer cans and a paper cup, the clear plastic type normally used to consume alcohol. (R-254-261) Massey testified that when he had an opportunity to observe Petitioner closely, he noticed his bloody and watery eyes and his very strong odor of alcohol; Petitioner's physical appearance was one of intoxication (R-261), and for that reason, he requested that blood samples be taken and field sobriety tests administered. (R-261-265) Moreover, Massey testified that Petitioner told him that he had had three or four Schlitz beers that evening around 9 to 9:30; the detective categorizing Petitioner's attitude during questioning as "almost sleepy," (R-273-275)

-10-

Massey admitted that prior to the administration of the field sobriety tests and other tests he informed Petitioner that a man had been killed. Petitioner started crying and "yelled that he didn't kill anybody and something like Oh, my God, don't tell me that.'' (R-288-292) Since Petitioner was emotional, Massey tried to calm him down and stopped the questioning and it was thereafter that he instructed Johnson to conduct the field sobriety tests. Subsequently, when he escorted Petitioner over to have the blood taken, Petitioner was still crying. (R-292-293, 296). Moreover, he testified that he had no recollection of any spilled alcohol when he searched Petitioner's car nor did he have any knowledge of whether the beer cans were cold or how long they had been in the automobile. (R-293-295) The evidence indicated the BMW jumped a curb, hit a tree and bounced off it (R-297); Massey's inspection of the BMW revealed only that the back windshield was out (R-300) and, that the automobile disclosed no evidence of Mr. Wigle's hair, blood or fiber clothing; however, he was unable to say how he was ejected. (R-301-303) Massey continued to testify that he personally inspected the BMW's front seat belts and they were both functional but had no recollection of any damage to the front passenger's seat or to the roof portion; he remembered the damage was to the right and left rear of the car and when he inspected the seat it was in an upright position. (R-304-305) And finally, he indicated that Mr. Kenney indicated to him he was wearing his seat belt during

-11-

the collision but Mr. Wigle had just taken his off in anticipation of arriving at his car. (R-309)

Constance Senkowski, a crime laboratory analyst, tested Petitioner's sample blood for alcohol content and the results revealed that Petitioner's blood had a .24 gram alcohol content. (R-368-380) Moreover, she proceeded to testify as to how different levels of alcohol content affect the normal faculties of a human being and related the rate of alcohol elimination is usually .02 grams per hour; it will take ten to twelve hours to completely eliminate a .24 content from an individual's body. (R-381-384) During cross-examination Senkowski acknowledged people have different levels of absorption which would change the time when alcohol begins to have an effect; admitted that she did not know either Petitioner's absorption or elimination rate (R-385-387); admitted that alcohol affects people differently with persons accustomed to drinking having more tolerance to its effect at a volume range up to about .13 to .15 (R-388-389); testified that a person with an alcohol content of .24 would be at a point where he would not be able to walk, would be in a stupor like comma stage; and, that based on the alcohol readings of his blood her opinion was that Petitioner would have been impaired for driving at the time the sample was taken. (R-390-392)

Officer Keith Wesley Knight testified that on November 7th at around 4.45 a.m., he administered a breathilyzer test to Petitioner. The results of the test showed a .139 alcohol content. Petitioner admitted driving a vehicle although he

-12-

was not sure where, admitted drinking 8, 9 or 10 beers, and, admitted being under the influence of alcohol. (R-396-414) During cross-examination, Knight stated Petitioner did not appear extremely intoxicated and had complained of neck pains. (R-414-419) But in his opinion Petitioner was under the influence of alcohol to the extent that his normal faculties were impaired. (R-420-422)

The State rested and motions for judgments of acquittal were denied. (R-423, 426-433) During the charge conference, Petitioner objected to the jury being instructed as to the presumptions contained in section 316.1934, Florida Statutes, on due process constitutional grounds, and requested that his jury be instructed as to the provisions of §316.614(5), Florida Statutes, as it related to the element of causation on the DUI charge, but the trial court ruled against him. (R-423-425; 444-470) The jury found Petitioner guilty of DUI manslaughter and of vehicular homicide, the lesser of the second-degree murder charge. (R-531-532)

-13-

#### IV SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Pursuant to <u>Poore v. State, infra</u>, as recently modified by this Court, Petitioner could only be ordered to serve 5 years in prison for the 1980 sexual battery for which he had originally received a true split sentence of 10 years suspended after 5.

Although the First District correctly found that Florida's statutory presumption of impairment from a .10 blood alcohol level is unconstitutional, it erred in concluding that the error was harmless because it incorrectly used "overwhelming evidence" as to the presumed element as the standard of review.

A casual relationship between a defendant's operation of a vehicle and the resulting death must be proven by the State as one of the elements of the DUI manslaughter crime, and the Petitioner was therefore entitled to have his jury instructed as to the theory of his defense as to this element of causation, particularly in a case such as this one when sufficient evidence was introduced to support the instruction.

-14-

#### V ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

# THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN AFFIRMING PETITIONER'S 25-YEAR SENTENCE.

Petitioner was convicted of DUI manslaughter. Also pending against Petitioner was a violation of probation charge on a 1980 sexual battery for which he had originally received a "true split sentence'' of 10-years, suspended after 5 years. For these two offenses, Petitioner was sentenced at the same time: the sentencing guidelines recommending a sentence of 17-22 years. The trial court sentenced Petitioner to 15 years in prison for DUI manslaughter and to **a** consecutive 10 year term in prison for the sexual battery offense, the latter sentence credited with "<u>actual</u>" time already served. In affirming Petitioner's sentences, the First District Court of Appeal, relying on <u>Poore v. State</u>, 503 So.2d 1282 (Fla. 5th DCA 1987), held:

> In the case at bar, appellant had no right to be resentenced under the guidelines because he had no right to be sentenced a second time at all. The 10-year sentence was set in 1980 and was merely being reimposed as a result of appellant's violation of probation. The recommended guidelines sentence of 17-22 years simply did not include this offense. Rather, the 17-22 year sentence was the presumptive guidelines sentence for the DUI manslaughter case. However, because the statutory maximum for this second degree felony was 15 years, the trial court could give only the 15-year imprisonment it did. s. 775.082, Fla.Stat. (1985). This sentence did not constitute a downward departure from the guidelines. Fla,R,Crim,P, 3.701(d)(10).

> > -15-

13 F.L.W. at 1963.

However, this Court has recently reviewed <u>Poore</u> and held that when a defendant is originally given a "true split sentence" consisting of a total period of confinement with a portion of the confinement period suspended and the defendant placed on probation for that suspended portion, upon a subsequent violation of probation:

> the sentencing judge in no instance may order incarceration that exceeds the remaining balance of the withheld or suspended portion of the original sentence. Section 948,06(1) would not apply in this latter instance because no new fact would be available for consideration by the sentencing judge. . . The possibility of the violation already has been considered, albeit prospectively, when the judge determined the total period of incarceration and suspended a portion of that sentence, during which the defendant would be on probation. In effect, the judge has sentenced in advance for the contingency of a probation violation, and will not later be permitted to change his or her mind on that question.

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