# PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Johnny Lee Frazier was the defendant in the trial court and the appellant in the First District Court of Appeal and will be referred to herein as Frazier or Petitioner. The State of Florida vas the prosecution in the trial court and the appellee in the First District Court of Appeal and will be referred to herein as the State.

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The State accepts the statement of the case set forth in the Petitioner's Brief on the Merits.

# STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The State will rely on the statement of facts set forth in the corrected opinion of the District Court of Appeal issued September 29, 1988. A copy of which is included as Respondent's Appendix A. The corrected opinion notes that it was the victim's failure to wear a seatbelt and not the defendant's lack of a seatbelt which formed the basis for the defendant's requested jury instruction.

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

ISSUE I: There is no error in the sentencing order and the trial court and this Court should not revisit the holding of the District Court of Appeal on the sentencing issue. The sentencing did not form a basis for the certified question.

**TSSUE** 11: The First District Court of Appeal incorrectly found that the Florida statutory presumption of impairment from a .10 blood alcohol level is unconstitutional for two reasons. The first reason is that the cases relied upon from the United States Supreme Court and the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeal dealt with an inference used to establish a criminal defendant's mental state. Here the inference is employed to establish the defendant's physical condition and mental state of mind is not at issue. The second reason is the statute employs the .10 standard is separate criminal offense in and of itself. The Legislature is free to create an offense of driving with a .10 blood alcohol level just as they are free to prohibit driving over a given speed limit. In any event, this issue is currently pending before this Court in another case and if this Court holds even the presumption constitutional error, the District Court has concluded the error is harmless under the standards set forth by this Court. Further judicial labor involving one panel of judges second-quessing the lower tribunal

unnecessary and inconsistent with this Court's limited jurisdiction.

ISSUE 111: There has been no change in the law requiring the state to establish a causal relationship between the defendant's operation of a vehicle and the resulting death in the prosecution of a DUI manslaughter offense. An instruction on the theory of defense presented by Frazier would be a departure from the essential requirements of law as an overruling of Supreme Court precedent by a lower tribunal. The Legislature has not fashioned a causal element of DUI manslaughter in the most recent amendment to 316.193, Fla.Stat.

#### ARGUMENT

## ISSUE I

THE DISTRICT COURT DID NOT ERR IN AFFIRMING PETITIONER'S TWENTY-FIVE YEAR SENTENCE.

Frazier argues that there is some difference between a sentence of ten years with credit for time served and a sentence imposing only the remaining five years with no credit for time served. This is a distinction without a difference. In <u>Poore v. State</u>, 13 F.L.W. 571 (Fla. 1988) the Court dealt with the situation involving a youthful offender. Johnny Frazier does not qualify for treatment under the youthful offender program and the law has no provision for generous treatment of adults who commit sexual battery and then manslaughter while on probation.

In <u>Washington v. State</u>, 284 So.2d 236 (Fla. 2d DCA 1973), then District Court Judge Stephen Grimes approved an interpretation of 8948.06, Fla.Stat., which allowed the trial court judge to open up an original sentence for reconsideration upon a revocation of probation. In <u>Washington</u> the defendant had pled guilty to aggravated assault and received four years probation condition on spending one year in jail. After serving one year in jail Washington violated his probation and was sentenced to three years in prison. The rationale of the <u>Washington</u> decision was later adopted by the Florida Supreme Court in <u>State v.</u> <u>Jones</u>, 327 So.2d 18 (Fla. 1976) in an opinion written by

Justice Overton, In Jones the court held that the time spent in jail and the split sentence is only limited by the maximum jail sentence which could be imposed under general law. The court specifically found that there was legislative intent to require initial imposition of the total sentence in order to increase the amount of jail time imposed after the revocation of probation. The only limitation on the imposition of additional jail time after revocation of probation in a split sentence situation was that the defendant must be given credit for time spent in jail pursuant to the split sentence probation order regardless of how it was originally imposed. The court concluded that:

We hold (1) the trial court may place a defendant on probation and include, as a condition, incarceration for a specific period of time within the maximum sentence allowed; (2) the trial court may revoke, revise, or modify for cause the probation and incarceration provision at any time during the period that said order is enforced and impose any sentence which might have been originally imposed; (3) upon revocation, a defendant must be given credit for any period of time spent in jail pursuant to a split sentence probation order.

Any fair reading of a sentencing order imposed by the trial court in this case is consistent with the decision in <a href="State v. Jones">State v. Jones</a> which was the law in effect at the time of sentencing and the only rational interpretation of the applicable sentencing criteria.

There is no indication in the record that Johnny Frazier ever elected guidelines sentencing for the 1987 revocation of probation sentence imposed on the 1980 sexual battery. Moreover, unlike our youthful offender in Poore, Johnny Frazier did commit a very substantial violation of criminal law, a second degree felony punishable by 15 years in prison. Under State v. Jones the trial court was free to revisit the 1980 ten year sentence and impose a life sentence for that sexual battery. Of course Frazier would be eligible for parole absent election of the sentencing quidelines.

The State asks that this Court either affirm the sentence imposed or order a remand to the trial court for imposition of any sentence within that provided by general law for a life felony of sexual battery with the option of electing guidelines sentencing or dismiss the Petition for Writ of Certiorari as improvidently granted as there is no conflict with State v. Jones as was done in Buenoano v. State, 504 So.2d 762 (Fla. 1987).

# ISSUE II

THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN CONCLUDING THAT THE JURY INSTRUCTION ON IMPAIRMENT IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL.

The State of Florida disagrees that the First District Court of Appeal was correct in concluding that Florida's statutory presumption of impairment from a .10 blood alcohol level was unconstitutional but does agree that the district court below applied the correct test of harmless error as stated in State v. DiGuilio, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986). The State would note that the author of the opinion below is the same district court judge who had certified the question in State v. Lee, 13 F.L.W. 532 (Fla. Sept. 1, 1988). Specifically, this Court's unanimous opinion in Lee noted that "It is apparent that the district court below was able to adequately apply the test as evidenced by its conclusion that it could not say that the error did not affect the verdict." Id. at 533-534. Thus, it is a unanimous conclusion of this Court that Judge Zehmer understands and can apply the DiGuilio test. The opinion below applied the DiGuilio concluded that test and any error instruction was harmless given the facts in this case. Conflict jurisdiction of this Court does not exist merely to substitute the legal conclusions of seven judges for that of a three-judge district court panel. The limited nature of this Court's jurisdiction precludes the arrogant assertion of this Court's power to review harmless error determinations in every instance. There is no point in the district court making harmless error determinations in the first instance if they are merely to be second-guessed by this tribunal on'everyoccasion.

The larger issue presented is the District Court of Appeal's reliance upon Rolle v. State, 13 F.L.W. 1030 (Fla. 4th DCA May 6, 1988) as a basis for overruling the prior decision of the First District in Hall v. State, 440 So.2d 689 (Fla. 1st DCA 1983). Rolle is currently pending in this Court as State v. Rolle, Case No. 72,383.

In Hall, supra, the First District Court of Appeal had held that the jury instruction at issue did not unconstitutionally shift the burden of proof to the defendant to prove his innocence because there was a rational connection between the fact proven and the ultimate fact presumed. The court applied the same test in County Court of Ulster v. Allen, 442 U.S. 140, 156 (1970). There is nothing in Francis v. Franklin, 471 U.S. 307 (1985), and Miller v. Norvell, 775 F.2d 1572 (11th Cir. 1985), which compels a different result than originally found in Hall. Francis and Miller involved mandatory rebuttal presumptions of mental state of mind in crimes where the state of mind was the critical element. In Francis it was the intent to kill and Miller the intent to defraud. The offense of driving under the influence does not involve any evidence of intent. Proof of the blood alcohol level of .10 or higher is merely one way of proving a violation of the statute. A violation

of 316.193, Fla. Stat. (1986), may be proven where there is evidence the defendant is under the influence of alcohol and no blood test has been taken such as red eyes, slurred speech, erratic operation of vehicle or by the simple presentation of a blood alcohol level .10. The statute allows proof of the offense of driving under the influence by alternative methods. See Washington v. District of Columbia, 538 Atlantic 2d 1151 (D.C.App. 1988). A .10 blood alcohol evidence was proven in this case and constitutes a per se violation of §316.193. Just as the Legislature is free to prohibit the operation of a vehicle over 65 miles an hour on the highways or the possession of contraband, it is free to punish the operation of a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol level of .10 or higher. The State will also rely on the arguments advanced by the State in the Rolle case.

#### ISSUE III

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN FAILING TO INSTRUCT THE JURY AS TO FRAZIER'S THEORY OF DEFENSE AS IT IMPERMISSIBLY ATTEMPTED TO INJECT THE ELEMENT OF CAUSATION INTO THE TRIAL.

Frazier argues that the only way the District Court could have found that he was not entitled to have his jury consider the seatbelt defense was the strict liability nature of DUI manslaughter. See <u>Armenia v. State</u>, 497 So.2d 638 (Fla. 1986). The State agrees that this is one theory for denying the requested instruction but would also note that the evidence presented at trial during the testimony of the medical examiner did not establish that the seatbelts in any way contributed to the death of Mr. Wigle. (R 200-213).

However, there is considerable debate in the circuit court and district courts regarding the issue of causation in the DUI manslaughter offense in light of the amendments to 8316.193 and the First District's opinion in McGaw v. State, 523 So.2d 762 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988). State v. Bowen, 13 F.L.W. 2343 (Fla. 5th DCA Oct. 20, 1988). This Court has accepted jurisdiction and briefs are filed in McGaw. McGaw v. State, Case No. 72,419. In McGaw the First District certified the question of whether this Court's holding in Armenia v. State is still valid in light of the amendments to 8316.193, Fla.Stat. (1986). The state argued in McGaw and here that the answer is yes. §316.193(3)(c), Fla.Stat. (Supp. 1986), does not differ in meaning or intent from

8316.193, Fla.Stat. (1983). Either statute requires the state to prove that a death was caused by an intoxicated person who operated a vehicle.

The rationale of <a href="Baker v. State">Baker v. State</a>, 377 So.2d 17 (Fla. 1979), finding a legislative intent to hold those who operate a vehicle while intoxicated to be strictly liable for any death they cause applies with equal force to the language of the amended or revised statutory scheme. revision in no way diminishes the strict liability of the intoxicated driver for the resulting death. The repeal of 8316.193 and its reenactment as §316.193(c), was an effort Legislature to harmonize previously competing by the definitions of impairment to clarify existing law under one standard. §316.193, Fla.Stat. (1985) defined driving under the influence (DUI) as operating a vehicle when affected by alcohol or other substances "to the extent that his normal faculties are impaired or having a blood alcohol level of .10 percent. Similarly, 8316.1931, Fla. Stat. (1985) defined driving while intoxicated (DWI) as operating a vehicle under the influence of alcohol or other substances when affected to such "extent to deprive him of full possession of his mental faculties", The different definitions for DUI and DWI resulted in needless confusion. The revision of 1986, applies the single standard 8316.193, in eliminates the distinction between DUI and DWI. The purpose of the revision was to eliminate the offense of DWI.

The newly defined offense of DUI manslaughter set forth in §316.193(3)(c), Fla.Stat. (Supp. 1986), includes new language to'wit: "Who, by reason of such operation, causes the death of any human being." The district court in McGaw suggested that this new language imposes a causation element which did not heretofore exist by word or in court construction under the old law. In essence, the District Court concluded that the newly revised statute specifically rejects the rationale of Baker v. State, supra, and Armenia v. State, 497 So.2d 638 (Fla. 1986).

The change in the statutory definition is a distinction without a difference. The phrase "By reason of such operation <u>causes</u> death" is no different than "If the death of any human being is <u>caused</u> by the operation of a motor vehicle by a person while intoxicated", found in the now repealed 8316.1931 and the prior §860.01(2) statute. (Emphasis supplied). The state is still required to prove the defendant merely operated the vehicle while under the influence.

The Legislature elected not to include language such as "by manner of such operation" or "reckless operation" which would have required the state to prove an element beyond simple operation and impairment. For instance, the Legislature could have created an offense of vehicular homicide while under the influence which would require the state to prove the killing of a human being by the operation

of a motor vehicle by another in a reckless manner likely to cause death and stated proof of impairment may be admissible to establish recklessness. See <a href="People v. Dedman">People v. Dedman</a>, 683 Pac.2d 763 (Colorado 1984) where the court interpreted a Colorado statute which contains the term "proximate cause". In Colorado, vehicular homicide is a strict liability offense. Likewise, in Florida the Legislature could have created an offense vehicular homicide while under the influence which would require the state to prove the killing of a human being by the operation of a motor vehicle by another in a reckless manner likely to cause death and stated proof of impairment may be admissible to establish recklessness. This statutory offense would preclude liability for Justice Boyd's hypothetical drunk driver at the stop light set forth in his dissenting opinion in Baker.

However, the amended law merely involved grammatical changes to the DWI manslaughter statute which made the language consistent with that applied to the drunk driver who causes only property damage or injury less than death. See §316.193(2)(a)(b), Fla.Stat. (1983), which is consistent with the State's position that 8316.193 was amended merely to harmonize the statutory scheme and create one standard of impermissible conduct, driving under the influence, in order to eliminate the DUI/DWI dichotomy on the definition of impairment.

Moreover, as recently stated by this Court in <u>State v.</u> Jackson, 526 So.2d 58 (Fla. 1988):

Tt. is axiomatic that where t.he Legislature had defined a crime specific terms, the courts are without authority to define it differently. See State v. Graydon, 506 So.2d 393 (Fla. An exception is made where literal interpretation of a statute yields absurd results. See Williams v. State, 472 So.2d 1051 (Fla. Criminal statutes are to be construed strictly in favor of the accused.

## Id. at 59.

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